THE AMERICAN DREAM

By

Merlin Miller

Copyright – January 2009 - Merlin Miller

CONTENTS

Acknowledgements	3
Introduction	7
The USS Liberty	11
Zionism	18
Conspiracies	24
Controlling Politics	31
Immigration	52
Our Military	59
Foreign Policy	66
Palestine's Future	71
Controlling the Media	74
Correcting Our Course	98
Summary	103
Notes	106
Author's Short Bio	110

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Over six years ago, the seeds for this treatise grew. From a chance encounter with a survivor from the "USS Liberty" I began to research one of the most bizarre, yet true, stories imaginable. The amazing survival of the USS Liberty and its crew of heroes are not generally known to the American public. The cover-up of that massacre is an incredible story in itself, but the Liberty injustice is only the beginning of this story. Ironically, the ship's name took on special meaning as my research started to uncover increasingly shocking revelations about an extremely well orchestrated and sinister assault on America's freedoms and traditional values. Since first drafting this treatise two years ago, events have rapidly unfolded and new information has come to light which further substantiates its thesis.

This coordinated attack began to take affect on America nearly 100 years ago, and by the Mid-1960's had systematically grown until it effectively held control of our mainstream media and political machinery. The effects on our society have been traumatic. The journey this study takes is highly controversial and as a result may either be entirely ignored or ruthlessly condemned. However, to help restore and preserve the American dream,

honest critics should be challenged to take this journey in the pursuit of truth.

Winston Churchill once said "Men occasionally stumble over the truth, but most pick themselves up and hurry off as if nothing had happened." We can no longer do that and expect to live as free people. Noted American sculptor, James N. Muir, in his award-winning inspirational book, <u>Lanterns Along The Path</u>, writes "...without truth, Justice is lost, and without Justice, Liberty is lost." It is time for heroes to wield the sword of truth.

At the outset, I would like to dedicate this treatise to a genuine American patriot, Richard S. Thompson. I owe Dick my deepest gratitude, for without his passion and encouragement this journey would have never begun. Sadly, Dick was killed in a single car crash on June 10th, 2007, as he returned from the 40th Reunion for the surviving crew of the USS Liberty. Although foul play was not suspected, Dick had told me of prior Israeli Mosad surveillance. Dick was the champion for the USS Liberty, spearheading their cause in many different ways. He had committed two days prior to his death, in front of several reunion attendees, that he would help secure funds for the motion picture production of their story...a story,

which begs to be told...and which Hollywood and other Israeli sympathizers have vowed to prevent.

My research path was lit by many and I hope that I accurately reflect their contributions along the way. For the most part, I will attempt to assimilate various findings and reference the work of other authors for the reader's further study.

I also thank the United States Military Academy at West Point for the values that it imparts and to the assistance of several courageous members of the "Long Gray Line." The Cadet Prayer encourages our future officers "...to choose the harder right instead of the easier wrong, and never to be content with a half-truth when the whole can be won." My experiences have led me to have the greatest respect and admiration for our service members and their families. Their sacrifices can never be adequately acknowledged and I hope that future civilian leaders find the strength to deploy them only in our nation's true defense. I would also like to honor America's "Founding Fathers", who by God's grace and their divine wisdom and courage gave this country its amazing start. The doctrines they inspired, and the documents they created and staked their lives for – including our

Declaration of Independence, Constitution and Bill of Rights, still represent our best hopes for the future.

Lastly, I thank my wife and daughters for their love and untiring support...it is for them, for the crew and families of the USS Liberty, and for future generations that this is written.

INTRODUCTION

Things are very wrong in The United States of America. Most citizens know it, yet they do not have a grasp on the severity of our situation. We, the most prosperous nation on earth, are deeply in debt. The once most beloved country on earth is now the most hated. Our economy lingers precariously while we fight ongoing wars in Afghanistan and Iraq and threaten Iran, Syria, and North Korea. Our military personnel are exposed to increasing dangers and are being manipulated and betrayed by a government which does not have America's best interests at heart. The foundations of this great nation are under assault in favor of a "New World Order" which ultimately seeks to destroy our nation's sovereignty and our individual freedoms and create a global socialist entity hidden behind the illusion of democracy. This study will attempt to shine light on the forces which are behind this bizarre herding of the masses, and why.

Among the public, trust in our political leaders (of both major political parties) is virtually non-existent. According to recent surveys, the percentage of Americans who say they trust the President and Congress is shockingly low (20-30%). We know that we have been lied to by our public

servants and this trend continues, yet no one seems able or willing to do anything about it. A controlled and propagandist media is the principle barrier to gaining the truth and is increasingly the lead agent of our subversion. The family unit is fighting disintegration and our moral compass is under continual downward adjustment. Our education system is being hijacked away from local teachers and administrators and placed under the control of government bureaucrats, whose political dictates supercede the instructional priorities of school districts.

A pluralist society, such as America has become, can thrive with mutual respect and fairness. However when immigration laws create excessive social and economic upheaval and use of a common language is forsaken, we are setting the stage for racial and ethnic conflict and the demise of our nation. The Christian religion, which figured so prominently in our creation and growth, has been under relentless assault through judicial and legislative actions and media disparagement. Traditional and family-friendly institutions, such as the Boy Scouts, are continually on the defense against ACLU supported homosexual ambushes or other non-traditional threats. Strange and relatively new biblical interpretations by evangelical leaders are disingenuously steering the Christian community to ardently

support Zionism, thereby condemning Islam and any hopes for a just and lasting peace in the Middle East.

From a timeline perspective, it is increasingly plausible that an ongoing conspiracy of international oligarchs, using activist organizations, the media and political puppets, as their principal agents, are behind many of history's destabilizing events and the problems we face today. Over the last century, Anarchists, Communists, Fascists, and Zionists have ruthlessly promoted destructive agendas. Influential, and often unwitting or desperate Jewish constituencies have been virtually hijacked to serve their needs, while other groups ignorantly acquiesce. To deny conspiracies is to deny human nature, and to dismiss, without study, the force of international financiers, is to dismiss our current situation and the recordings of history. Unfortunately, where profit and power are at stake, human ruthlessness has no bounds and the global chess game can take on apocalyptic dimensions.

However, an informed people can neutralize the fears and trauma caused by these conspirators and their destructive acts. The Republican system can work peacefully, we can take back our country, correct our course, regain our liberties, and influence other nations through positive example. But this

can happen only if corrupting forces are harnessed and brave individuals light our way back to the path of humanitarian greatness.

What motivates me to write this treatise is faith in the prevailing goodness of an informed mankind and belief in a loving and all-powerful God. I am a product of "The American Dream" and still believe in the future of this country. I believe in our "Pledge of Allegiance" and hope that our children can continue to experience "One Nation, under God, indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for All."

USS LIBERTY

On June 8th, 1967 during the "Six Day War," Israel attacked a defenseless American ship, the USS Liberty, killing 34 Crewmen and wounding 173 others. The Liberty was in international waters monitoring and transmitting signals received from the war zone. She was flying the American flag and her markings were clearly identifiable on that sunny day. Israel later claimed that the attack was an accident, a case of mistaken identity, yet several friendly overpasses by Israeli jets had preceded the attack and individuals familiar with the attack deny any legitimacy to Israel's claim.

A few published books offer details of the attack and speculation about why it took place. Conspiracy of Silence was written by Anthony Pearson, who had two articles about the USS Liberty previously published by Penthouse magazine. The magazine later regretted publishing the articles after enormous Zionist pressures. Pearson died thereafter under mysterious circumstances while investigating another story critical of Israel (1). James Ennes, Jr., a surviving officer who was on bridge duty at the time of the attack, published his account in Assault on the Liberty shortly after Pearson. This was a brave effort in that he defied instructions given to the crew

(under threat of court-martial) to never disclose information about the attack. Those orders were part of a conspiracy to cover up the true facts and allow the "incident," as it was called, to disappear from public scrutiny. Surviving members of the crew were reassigned, with no two being assigned together. This incredible cover-up was ordered by President Lyndon Johnson, who actually recalled Sixth Fleet aircraft twice, after they had been dispatched to rescue the Liberty. During the prolonged and sustained attack by unmarked Mirage and Mystere jets, missiles, rockets, and napalm rained down on the ship. They were followed up by torpedo boats, which blew a 40-foot hole in the side of the ship. The torpedo boats also fired at top-side crewmen and destroyed life-rafts as they were launched (a war crime). A large helicopter with armed Israeli soldiers hovered thereafter, but left, apparently in the belief that American naval forces were en-route. It is truly amazing that the ship survived this relentless, nearly two-hour assault and is largely due to many individual acts of heroism. The first Israeli air assault wave destroyed all of the ship's antenna and communications equipment, and only due to the superhuman efforts of two crewmen, who climbed the masts to string a new line, was eventual communications reestablished with the Six Fleet. This, perhaps more than any other act, contributed to their ultimate survival.

There has been much speculation about why Israel attacked the USS Liberty. Some suggest that Israel was committing war crime atrocities against Egyptian forces and that Liberty intercepts might reveal this, as well as the fact that Israel was the real aggressor in the war. Also, Israel was "cooking" communications by intercepting Egyptian, Jordanian and Syrian messages and altering content before sending them on. This created deceptions about the actual progress of the war and encouraged their Arab enemies to reposition and blindly engage troops, thus allowing Israel to expand their land conquests. There was also considerable pressure from other nations for a cease-fire. If the war were expanded, it would enable Israel to conquer the Golan Heights, as well as consolidate their gains in the Sinai, Gaza, and West Bank. Peter Hounam's book, Operation Cyanide, postulates that the Six-Day War was actually planned and aided by the CIA and that the Liberty was to be sacrificed as part of an operation to bring the US into the conflict, if necessary, and guarantee an overwhelming victory for Israel. Egypt, of course, would have been blamed for the attack...perhaps an echo of Johnson's "Gulf of Tonkin Incident", which escalated our involvement in Vietnam. Hounam's book offers some disturbing conspiratorial aspects, especially considering the bizarre coverup, which followed. An excellent documentary video was produced for the BBC entitled "Dead in the Water." This documentary is continually denied airings to American audiences due to pressures from pro-Israel groups.

Other books which offer insights into the Liberty attack are: Body of Secrets by James Bamford, They Dare to Speak Out by former Congressman Paul Findley, and The Zionist Connection II by Alfred Lilienthal. Bamford offers an insider's expert analysis of the National Security Agency (NSA), the controlling organization for the Liberty's intelligence crew. Findley's book deals largely with the power of the American Jewish community to squelch any anti-Israel dissent, influence electoral outcomes, and determine American foreign policy. Lilienthal offers extraordinary insights into the Zionist movement, which has been so divisive among American Jews, and how it will never permit real peace in the Middle East. The greatest insights into the USS Liberty attack and cover-up can be obtained from the web-sites ussliberty.org and usslibertyinquiry.com, which were constructed by surviving crewmen and their supporters.

It is interesting to note that no formal Congressional Investigation has ever been made of the Liberty attack, despite repeated requests. Any

Congressperson or Senator, who has pressured for an investigation, has been thwarted and in most cases defeated in the next election through the efforts of the powerful American-Israel Public Affairs Committee (AIPAC). This is the most powerful lobbying organization in Washington and is, in effect, the unregistered agent of a foreign government, which has and continues to foster Israeli spying against America.

Captain Ward Boston was the senior legal counsel for the Naval Court of Inquiry. In response to Israeli apologists who tried to claim that the attack was a case of "mistaken identity," he subsequently came forth with a declaration, which clearly establishes Israeli culpability. In his declaration, he asserts that President Johnson and Secretary of Defense, Robert McNamara, ordered Admiral Isaac Kidd, President of the Court, to falsify the report. Both Admiral Kidd and Captain Boston were adamant in their conclusions that the attack was a deliberate effort to sink an American ship and murder its entire crew…but they followed orders (2).

Secretary of State, Dean Rusk, CIA Director, Richard Helms, and later
Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, Admiral Thomas Moorer, all held
unwavering views that the attack was deliberate and, in effect, an act of war

against our servicemen. The Court of Inquiry had only been given one week to make their findings, instead of six months, which they recommended. During that short time they gathered a vast amount of evidence, including heartbreaking testimonies, but were not able to consider any of the more than 60 eyewitness accounts from those who were hospitalized. Select key testimonies, which had been taken, were later purged from the report. Dr. Richard Keipfer, CAPTAIN, USN (Ret), was the ship's doctor who heroically saved many of the crewmen's lives. He has stated, "Never before in the history of the United States Navy has a Navy Board of Inquiry ignored the testimony of American military eyewitnesses and taken, on faith, the word of their attackers". The Board was also denied permission by Admiral John S. McCain, Jr., Commander-in-chief, Naval Forces Europe (and father of the Arizona Senator), to travel to Israel to question any Israelis concerning the matter. Admiral McCain's chief legal counsel and later Judge Advocate General of the Navy, Admiral (Ret.) Merlin Staring, did not believe the evidence supported the report's conclusions but his review was terminated and the report sent to Washington, D.C. anyway with Admiral McCain's signature.

Why is the case of the USS Liberty so important for our study? It marked a

key moment in our history, whereby the agents of a foreign country knew that they could control events within America. By controlling key elements of our media and the political landscape, they knew that they could literally get away with murder. From the administration of Lyndon Johnson and thereafter, Zionist forces have clearly been in control of our Mid-East foreign policy decisions. We thereafter became the principle benefactor for Israel and annually contribute Billions of dollars to their military and civilian infrastructure. How did we become the patrons of Zionism?

ZIONISM

Zionism has been defined as a plan or movement of the Jewish people to return from the Diaspora to Palestine. A movement originally aimed at the re-establishment of a Jewish national homeland and state in Palestine and now concerned with development of Israel (3).

One hundred years ago, the American Jewish community was strongly opposed to the Zionist movement. They were assimilating successfully in America and did not support a plan to relocate the Jewish people to a partition of land in Palestine or elsewhere. Americans of the Jewish faith could freely practice their religion without fear of persecution and were developing a national loyalty to America. Conservative Judaism and Reform Judaism were growing as alternatives to Orthodox Judaism, which still adhered to more extreme interpretations of the Talmud. The Jewish community was integrating with the rest of mankind and at peace and prospering in America.

Most religions, whether Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, or Confucianism express a spiritual belief and reverence for a superhuman

power recognized as the creator and governor of the universe. Kahil Gibran wrote, "In my thought there is only one universal religion, whose varied paths are but the fingers of the loving hand of the Supreme Being" (4). But extremist factions of each religion can employ their own perversions and create eternal conflict among men.

Israel Shahak's book <u>Jewish History – Jewish Religion</u> is a fantastic study of some of these historical perversions and how they have adversely affected the Jewish people and their prospects for assimilation with the rest of humanity. Regarding the state of Israel, Shahak writes "There are two choices which face Israeli-Jewish society. It can become a fully closed and warlike ghetto, a Jewish Sparta, supported by the labour of Arab helots, kept in existence by its influence on the US political establishment and by threats to use its nuclear power, or it can try to become an open society. The second choice is dependent on a honest examination of its Jewish past, on the admission that Jewish chauvinism and exclusivism exist, and on a honest examination of the attitudes of Judaism towards the non-Jews." (5)

Shahak's assessment is very honest and open, but would be repudiated by most Zionists and Orthodox Jews. To complicate things, since the late

1800s "Christian Dispensationalists" have been strangely interpreting the Bible to profess that Palestine would one day be given back to the Jews. One of the early evangelical writers, William E. Blackstone, organized the first Zionist lobbying effort in 1891. He recruited J.P. Morgan, John D. Rockefeller and Charles B. Scribner and other financiers to underwrite a massive newspaper campaign for establishing a Jewish state in Palestine (6). Today the preachings of misguided, but media-supported evangelical, Christian Zionists have confused the Christian community to support this campaign.

Since earliest times, the quest for truth and the quest for power separated mankind. When Abraham received the calling four thousand years ago and began to follow One God, man had to question if he would continue to hold pagan beliefs and honor many Gods or believe in one supreme power. In the centuries that would follow, the twelve tribes of Israel came together with the conquest of Canaan. In time, the ten northern tribes of Israel would begin to assimilate with other peoples and after the Assyrian conquest, would disperse throughout the world. In later centuries many would follow the teachings of Jesus and become a part of building the Western world. Others, who remained in the region, would largely become Islamic.

However, the southern tribe of Judah would follow a belief that God would accept them as the "Chosen Race," and they would ultimately dominate the rest of mankind. They believed they were chosen in this self-serving sense, rather than as emissaries to bring the word of "One God." Much of the inconsistencies in the Old Testament reflect these different postures.

By the time of Jesus, the Judaic Pharisees held internal power under the Roman Protectorate of Palestine. The Pharisees were threatened by Jesus' teachings of love, which challenged the materialism they inspired through fear and greed. By 70 AD, when Jerusalem fell, the two remaining Judaic tribes were scattered and the struggle for man's soul took different roads. In the following centuries, Christianity would blossom with the teachings of the New Testament, and Islam would grow through the teachings of Muhammad and the Qur'an. Judaism, based on it's Mosaic Law (the Torah), and racist Talmudic interpretations would often hold the Jewish community together by instilling a combination of fear and supremacy. Christian extremists would exacerbate this through religious persecutions. These interpretations and posturings would create an ever-expanding gulf and resentments would grow, especially between Christians and Jews.

Judaists would often migrate as small groups, which grew into "ghettos", during the middle ages. The largest groups, which were of Semitic descent would migrate across Northern Africa into Spain and be referred to as Sephardim Jews. Another group, which would grow to dominate the Jewish faith was called the Ashkenazi. It is primarily the Ashkenazi, which would make up the largest percentage of European Jews and the Jews, which migrated to America. Ironically, the Ashkenazi are not generally of Semitic descent, but were descended from the Khazars. According to Arthur Koestler, "the Khazar contribution to the genetic make-up of the Jews must be substantial, and in all likelihood dominant." (7) The Khazar kingdom converted to Judaism in the 8th century AD, largely as a strategic move, since their Kingdom was located between the Black Sea and the Caspian Sea, wedged between the two growing super religions of Christianity and Islam. The Khazars had been an aggressive, warlike, and pagan people and without this mass conversion it is possible that the Judaic faith may have died out in the course of history. Over the next few hundred years, the Khazars migrated into Russia and Eastern Europe - in large numbers after the Mongol invasions.

It is ironic that today we refer to anyone who opposes things Jewish as

"anti-Semitic", when in reality the majority of Jews are not a Semitic people. It is doubly ironic that the Palestinian and Arab peoples, who are Semitic and have been the victims of Zionist cruelties, are often accused of "anti-Semitism" for their resistance to Israeli land grabs and oppression. A third irony is that the very name Israel was chosen for a Jewish state, when the ancient tribe of Judah rejected the more moderate beliefs of the ancient Israelis. Some scholars today believe this was done to cause confusion to allow better acceptance for Zionist encroachments in Palestine. As David Ben Gurion said, "If I were an Arab leader, I would never sign an agreement with Israel. It is normal; we have taken their country. It is true God promised it to us, but how could that interest them? Our God is not theirs. There has been Anti - Semitism, the Nazis, Hitler, Auschwitz, but was that their fault? They see but one thing: we have come and we have stolen their country. Why would they accept that?"

CONSPIRACIES

Many conspiracy theories have evolved over the centuries in response to history's cataclysmic events. These most often originate in response to the actions of secret groups, many with ancient occult origins, believed to be operating for financial gain and power. The Illuminati and other groups, some associated with Freemasonry, have often been accused of organizing and implementing mass dissentions. With the leaders at the top often protected from the actions at the bottom, these organizations have been very effective and through a system of establishing various levels of secret initiation are hidden from any general awareness, even by their own membership (which believe they are supporting noble causes).

From the French Revolution until the early twentieth century, this most often took the form of undermining Catholicism in Europe and orchestrating the overthrow of Monarchs through anarchy. Jewish connection to these groups is strong and many books have been written which contain overwhelming evidence in support of these conspiracy theories.

Some of the most thought provoking books include; The Controversy of

Zion by Douglas Reed, <u>Secret Societies & Subversive Movements</u> by Nesta Webster, and <u>The Secret World Government</u> by Count Cherep-Spiridovich. Reed's perspective is particularly revealing in that he was a world-renowned journalist during the first half of the 20th century. His career seemingly died overnight, when he began to write of happenings from a historical perspective.

The power of these conspiratorial movements grew substantially in conjunction with the growth of Zionism in the late 1800's and early 1900's. Their ruthlessness was most obvious during the Russian Revolution when Bolshevists led the overthrow of the Czar and brought that country to despair through the barbaric imposition of Communism. The leaders of these communist movements were largely Jewish.

Many theories relate to international financiers controlling the political arena through economic leveraging – most effectively begun with the deceptions and deeds of Amschel Mayer (who changed the family name to Rothchild). During the Nineteenth Century, the Rothchild clan and associates were notorious for funding conflicts between nations and gaining power, if not control, through manipulations of key members of the various

governments. Despite the best intentions of many government servants, the human factor can easily intercede, and the general public's best interests can be betrayed. As George Washington said, "Few men have virtue to withstand the highest bidder."

Economic Hit Man by John Perkins. It is clear how corruption has grown from an individual and familial level to the organized subjugation of nations. The leverages imposed by ruthless individuals and companies, wealthy governments, and through such organizations as "The World Bank", "International Monetary Fund," and The United Nations are incredible. The financial tools for empire building have certainly not always served the best interests of American citizens, but have padded the coffers of certain business interests and leveraged for a one-world economy by exploiting the human vices of representatives of target nations.

International financiers are certainly not all Jewish and the overwhelming majority of Jewish people are not conspirators. That said, I do believe that the American Jewish community has been manipulated over the last century by a number of influencers to support a Zionist agenda, which serves

internationalists' designs.

A climate of fear has been developed throughout the ages and perpetuated in the Jewish Ghetto communities through racist Talmudic indoctrination. Kevin McDonald, in his excellent study The Culture of Critique, writes "...intense hatred of perceived enemies appears to be an important psychological characteristic of Jews" (8). Nesta Webster, in Secret Societies & Subversive Movements adds, "In reality nothing is more cruel than to encourage in the minds of a nervous race the idea of persecution; true kindness to the Jews would consist in urging them to throw off memories of past martyrdom and to enter healthfully into the enjoyment of their present blessings..." (9).

Jewish fears are very real however and history has shown varying levels of persecution throughout the ages, the most significant in recent times being Nazi persecutions before and during WWII. While there is no doubt that the Jews were persecuted during Hitler's reign, there is also an ongoing reevaluation of events and many revisionist historians are increasingly questioning the origins and extent of the Holocaust. The case of Ernst Zundel (www.zundelsite.org) is of particular interest. He was a Canadian

publisher of German origin, who published Did Six Million Really Die? He was subsequently accused and prosecuted under an old "false news" clause (determined to be unconstitutional years later). The two trials, which took place in the 1980's, received scant and one-sided press in the US, but raised serious concerns for free speech. Robert Lenski's The Holocaust On Trial is a most startling account of the trials. In it, many expert witnesses refute the accuracy of earlier findings, thus casting serious doubts on the truthfulness and extent of generally accepted accounts of the Holocaust and on the fairness and conduct of the Nuremberg trials (10). We should in no way minimize the horrors of that era, but we should also be careful that falsifications and exaggerations are not promulgated to benefit certain groups and disadvantage others. Particularly disturbing is the increasing loss of individual freedom that has resulted by restricting or disallowing historical inquiry. Truth does not fear investigation, yet in Europe thousands of people have been fined or incarcerated for merely questioning the growing inconsistencies of the Holocaust story. One German judge, in sentencing a Holocaust "denier", went so far as to declare that "truth is no defense". Enormous sums of reparation payments have funded the nation of Israel and any loss of validity to these claims could endanger Israel's future and increase public scrutiny over their own oppressive actions.

Zionist leaders have often used a combination of fear and "chosen race" supremacy to mobilize the Jewish population and apply pressures where needed to promote the Zionist agenda. This is most apparent today, through the vast network of Jewish organizations (such as the Anti-Defamation League), which are always on the look-out for potential threats and working to promote Jewish and Israeli interests, often while subordinating America's best interests. When threats are thus perceived, their networks are activated to fight and destroy it...even when the threat was unfairly perceived or is an unjust business or political maneuver. Within the Jewish community, these individuals, as "Sayanim", are called upon to give their aid to any call for protecting Jewish interests. This is sometimes employed by the Israeli Mosad. While these servants may sometimes be considered traitorous in their actions against America, they are considered loyal to their Jewish/Israeli brethren and that is their first priority. Alfred Lilienthal, in his thorough analysis, The Zionist Connection II... What Price Peace?, makes the disturbing observation that Americans of the Jewish faith are increasingly giving their first loyalty to the state of Israel over that of the U.S. Many American Jews are made to feel guilty for not choosing to migrate to their "homeland" of Israel. To compensate, they donate large

sums of money and apply significant pressure on American politicians to sanctify Israel, increase foreign aid to Israel, and shield Israel from any scrutiny. (11)

CONTROLLING POLITICS

Political corruption, which would allow our government to take actions in opposition to the best interests of the American people, began in earnest with the election of Woodrow Wilson and the subsequent creation of the Federal Reserve system and the IRS. Wilson was elected due to a split in the Republican Party when Theodore Roosevelt was induced to run against the incumbent Taft.

There has been a lot of publicity lately about the misdeeds of the Federal Reserve and information about this group of private bankers can be found by reading "The Creature from Jekyll Island" by G. Edward Griffin or viewing the video, "The Money Masters". One of the greatest scams imaginable, the Federal Reserve system is neither Federal, nor do they have reserves. Early in our history, central bankers tried to gain control of our country's economic system...twice they were defeated, first by Thomas Jefferson and later by Andrew Jackson. Several assassination attempts were made on the life of President Jackson and he related on his death bed that his greatest success was "I killed the bank". But they made other

attempts - provoking and leveraging to fund the Civil War is one example. Lincoln's rejection of the Rothchild bank loan terms (at exorbitant interest) and issuance of his own "Greenbacks" instead, set back their plans, but led to his eventual assassination. President James Garfield also strongly resisted the central banking scheme and was assassinated in 1881. But the bankers finally reestablished themselves in 1913 under Woodrow Wilson and determined to never let go. This privately owned consortium of international bankers work without Constitutional authority and without any proper oversight to set monetary policy and issue our currency. They unconscionably bilk the American taxpayers with never-ending interest charges on this currency - payment of which is assured through the creation of the IRS (also in 1913), which previously never existed and was not necessary for America's growth and prosperity. Despite peoples' misconceptions, the IRS could disappear today, if we trimmed back Federal expenditures to the level of our 2000 budget. Instead, the Fed and Treasury are now debt financing multi-trillion dollar "bailouts" to Wall Street and private institutions, further in-debting the American people and leading toward nationalization of industry and socialism. Where is the Congressional responsibility and oversight?

Historically, protective tariffs and excise taxes were able to fund our federal expenditures. Deceptively, the IRS was actually created to be an enabler for the Federal Reserve System (interest payments to the bankers), an income redistributor (socialism), and a silent enslaver of the American people.

Today, our Federal Reserve notes (paper or electronic data entries) are just a "fiat currency" without any real value or commodity backing, yet they are the heart of our system of debt financing.

The Federal Reserve also sets preferred government interest rates among banks, supposedly to help economic stability and to keep things in line with market conditions, but actually causing our economic "bubbles" and undermining the true free market. Thomas Jefferson warned, ""I believe that banking institutions are more dangerous to our liberties than standing armies ... If the American people ever allow private banks to control the issue of their currency, first by inflation, then by deflation, the banks and corporations that will grow up around [them] will deprive the people of all property until their children wake-up homeless on the continent their fathers conquered. The issuing power should be taken from the banks and restored to the people, to whom it properly belongs." Also, quite revealingly, Mayer Amschel Rothschild, founder of the Rothschild Banking Dynasty, was

quoted "Let me issue and control a nation's money supply, and I care not who makes its laws."

The Fed now injects new monies, printed by them or electronic credits, with no commodity backing (Nixon did away with the last connection to a gold standard in 1971). The only connection to real worth is now limited to our trust in a growing and increasingly oppressive government, controlled by these central bankers. By printing and injecting this new paper, all of our currency is devalued. The dollar today is worth about 3 cents, compared to 1913 (when these shenanigans began). The real purchasing power of gold or silver has not changed substantially, which reveals how stable our currency could be and how much more affluent our people and country would be without the hidden tax of inflation and the enormous national debt payments, which are, overwhelmingly, the interest charges paid to these bankers. Our own Treasury should issue the currency, interest free, and it should be backed by silver or gold, as authorized by our Constitution. Distressingly, there is now increasing speculation that under President Lyndon Johnson, a large portion of the US gold reserves, previously held at Ft. Knox, was surreptitiously removed and shipped out of country in 1968. The subsequent selling (at low fixed price) of remaining gold assets to

foreign holders of US debt is undoubtedly what precipitated the abandonment of our commodity backed currency in 1971.

Throughout history, fiat currencies have led to the demise of empires. As our dollar becomes worth less, people on fixed incomes and lower wage earners are penalized and their wealth/security is essentially stolen. Also, as we gradually increase wage levels (always behind the curve), tax rates are higher, even though actual value is less. With our ongoing overseas military adventures (today's ultimate betrayal of the American people), we are borrowing from countries like China, Japan and Saudi Arabia...billions of dollars per day! Politicians are passing on this debt to our kids, as they know that openly increasing taxes to pay for this would not be acceptable and they would be kicked out of office. As we incur this increasing and out-of-control debt, we agitate for more wars and leave our borders wide-open. Meanwhile, economic and social problems at home are about to explode.

To get professional insights and more specifics on these financial shenanigans, one can look at the many writings and speeches of Congressman Ron Paul, a true American statesman (see www.campaignforliberty.com). Dr. Paul has dressed down Federal Reserve

Chairmen Alan Greenspan and Ben Bernanke, and they always concede - yet Dr. Paul has not been able to get others in Congress, "owned politicians", to address our true economic problems. The key is forcing adherence to our Constitution...a brilliant document, which never authorized the Federal Reserve or IRS. Our Founding Fathers always forewarned of these things and recommended vigilance to preserve our liberties and maintain a small government...answerable to the people. Unfortunately, also in 1913, the number of our Congressional representatives became set, which was never the intention of our Founding Fathers. This has arbitrarily reduced the true representation of the people and enabled "special interest" domination over Congress. See "thirty-thousand.org" for an amazing analysis.

President Wilson's controllers also convinced him to manipulate our entry into WWI (these bankers have traditionally been in partnership with the military industry complex and war making political leaders). Wilson was an easily manipulated scholar (bribed through an extra-marital affair) and his career and decisions were largely made by Edward Mandell House, referred to as Colonel House (although he was not a military man). According to Douglas Reed, "Mr. House did not guide American State policy, but

deflected it towards Zionism, the support of the world-revolution, and the promotion of the world-government ambition" (12). In addition to Colonel House, President Wilson's three other most trusted advisers were all Zionists; Mr. Bernard Baruch, Mr. Louis D. Brandeis, and Rabbi Stephen Wise. These influencers, along with Zionism's international emissary and eventual first Israeli President, Chaim Weizmann, were able to convince Wilson to enter WWI on the side of England, although American sentiment more closely supported Germany. This action was a payment to England made by international Jewry. In return, England would support Zionist ambitions to establish a Jewish state in Palestine. The resultant document was the Balfour Declaration. Thereafter, America would gradually take the baton from England and become the primary patron of Zionism.

President Wilson tellingly wrote before his death..."A great industrial nation is controlled by its system of credit. Our system of credit is privately concentrated. The growth of the nation, therefore, and all our activities are in the hands of a few men ... [W]e have come to be one of the worst ruled, one of the most completely controlled and dominated, governments in the civilized world - no longer a government by free opinion, no longer a government by conviction and the vote of the majority, but a government by

the opinion and the duress of small groups of dominant men."

When Germany realized how they had been sold out by the European Jewish community to bring America into the war, they were resentful and these sentiments, along with the unconscionable injustices of the Versaille Treaty and the Jewish inspired Communist movement, led to conditions that brought Hitler to power. Hitler wanted to extricate Germany of the Jews and was actually working with the Zionists to this end. The Zionists saw, through a totalitarian state, better prospects for creating conditions that would force the migration of European Jews to Palestine...an action necessary for the Zionist dream to unfold.

According to Benjamin Freedman, who had been a wealthy and influencial American business man and privy to meetings of American and International Zionist leaders, "...the Zionists and their co-religionists everywhere, are determined that they are going to again use the United States to help them permanently retain Palestine as their foothold for their world government." Freedman gave a speech, which offered incredible insights into how we were manipulated into WWI and WWII and how through Zionism we will be sacrificed into WWIII to serve their aims (13).

During the early 1920's a disturbing document was published called "The Protocols of the Learned Elders of Zion." First published in 1905, it was supposedly a record of meetings of Zionist leaders held in the late 1800's. In detail, it is a ruthless plan for the subjugation of human kind to a controlling Jewish kingdom. Whoever the authors were, they were brilliant, and evil, with a keen understanding of the dark side of human nature. The Jewish community condemned it as a forgery, while it became a blue print for the history of the 20th Century. Concerned leaders in the 1920's called for its study and Henry Ford published a series of articles in his Dearborn Free Press calling for the study of "The International Jew" (14). In England, Lord Northcliffe published a series of articles and attempted further study of "the Jewish question." Douglas Reed offers first hand insights into the troubles that then befell Lord Northcliffe, leading to his bizarre death (15).

Meanwhile in the Middle-East, the former lands of the Ottoman Empire had been carved up in accordance with the Sykes-Picot agreement. The Balfour Declaration had not been honored as its difficulties became apparent and the British (and French) had also made land promises to Arab leaders during WWI. The lands encompassing Palestine by the early 1920s were

overwhelmingly Arab with a minority of Christians and a very small Judaic population. The Zionists realized that the only way to fulfill their vision was to have a mass influx of Jews from around the world migrate to Palestine. This process was encouraged, many lands were purchased and the Jewish population grew, but still remained a small minority. WWII and the selling of the Holocaust would change that. The greatest victors coming out of WWII were the Zionists; they would not only benefit from enormous (and still ongoing) war reparations from Germany, but they also built a strong case for the need of the Jewish state to accommodate the misplaced Jews of Europe. Following the war, most European Jews would have preferred to remain or return to their host lands, but were not given this option. Also, pressure from the Zionists greatly reduced the number of Jewish immigrants that would be permitted to enter the U.S. or Great Britain. The Zionists leveraged to force a large and desperate body of Jews to migrate to Palestine. By this time, they had succeeded in converting much of the American Jewish community to support the migration and the establishment of an Israeli state. To give insight into the mind-set of the Zionist leaders, David Ben-Gurion, future Prime Minister of Israel, was quoted, "If I knew that it was possible to save all the children of Germany by transporting them to England, and only half by transferring them to the

Land of Israel, I would choose the latter, for before us lies not only the numbers of these children but the historical reckoning of the people of Israel" (16).

By 1946, acts of Zionist terrorism were directed against the British in Palestine who by that time wanted to extricate themselves from the messy situation. When the "Israeli War for Independence" began in 1948, Zionists ruthlessly terrorized the inhabitants of Palestinian villages to force them to leave and fear return. President Harry Truman, with strong Zionist support in America, immediately recognized the new state of Israel. At about the same time, Stalin began his purges of the Jewish communist leadership in Russia, causing American Jewish leaders to condemn the Soviets and call for the immigration of Russian Jews to Israel...heating up the "Cold War". As America and Western Europe united in opposition to the spread of communism, Zionists would increasingly abandon their open affiliations with communism and become aligned with "Republican" forms of government.

Prior to the 1948 Israeli War for Independence, referred to as "the Catastrophy" by its Arab inhabitants, the UN was looking to carve up

Palestine and grant to a new state of Israel up to 55% of the lands of Palestine, even though their numbers by this time could only justify about one-third of a land assignment. As a result of the War, Israel would actually come to hold approximately 78% of Palestine. The remaining 22% would be acquired as "Occupied Territory" during the Six-Day War of 1967, as well as the Golan Heights portion of Syria (17).

As Alfred Lilienthal described, "Ignorant, misled Americans insisted on judging the Middle East conflict in terms of the survival of refugees from Hitler, never as the Zionist building of a nation that required expulsion of the overwhelming majority of the Palestinian people from their country, along with expropriation of their lands, homes and property" (18). Since then, the state of Israel has passed numerous racist laws, directly discriminating against its Arab inhabitants and refugees - trying to get them to leave and never return. Israel's Arab neighbors have rallied in opposition and there has been no real peace in the region since. It has often been proclaimed that the U.S. has only one friend in the Middle-East, implying Israel, but General George S. Brown responded best, "Before Israel,

By the early 1960's, Israel needed something to sustain her existence. She was not getting enough new immigrants to insure a Jewish majority and her economy was dependent on external support. Prime Ministers David Ben-Gurion and later Golda Meir wanted nuclear weaponry, control of the river headlands, and Israel's security interests to be adopted by the United States. President Kennedy, although a supporter of Israel, wanted to halt the arms race and present a face of fairness in the Middle East. He wanted America to maintain good relations with other nations in the region and to pursue just solutions for the Palestinian refugee problem. Stephen Green's book, Taking Sides, gives great political insights into this (19).

President Kennedy offered \$600 Million to build a nuclear-powered desalinization plant in Israel if the state would stop construction of its nuclear reactor at Dimona and not try to control the waters of their neighbors, but Israel refused (20). Kennedy continued to try to delineate between U.S. and Israeli national interests and pushed for a humanitarian solution to the Palestinian problem. However, U.S. sponsorship for a UN resolution to go before the General Assembly was sabotaged by the assassination of the American President (21). Kennedy's successor, Lyndon Johnson, would turn out to be a loyal supporter of Israeli interests and the

next few years would bring incredible successes to their collaborations, culminating with the Six-Day War. Lyndon Johnson would go on to provide covert support for Israel's development of nuclear energy and weaponry, and would bring the U.S. to the verge of WWIII by supporting Israeli plans and execution of the Six-Day War. One of the CIA's chief plotters, James Jesus Angleton, helped Israel for years and was later honored with two monuments in Israel (22). Angleton would subsequently be dismissed from the CIA by Director James Colby, who although an excellent swimmer, would mysteriously die by drowning in four feet of Chesapeake water. It was this same Angleton who in earlier years tried to steer the CIA investigations of the death of President Kennedy toward the Soviets. The Warren Commission Report ultimately and ridiculously labeled Lee Harvey Oswald as the lone assassin. Unfortunately, Oswald was killed at the hands of terminally ill bar owner, Jack Rubinstein, before any other information could be revealed. In addition to Kennedy's scrutiny of Israeli actions, the President had also signed Executive Order 11110 (on June 4th, 1963), which authorized the US Treasury to issue its own currency (US Treasury Notes) backed by silver and not subject to Federal Reserve charges of interest. President Kennedy, who was also working to end our involvement in Vietnam, had begun acting as a true President, concerned

foremost with the interests of America. His assassination was the turning point in modern American history and the beginning of our decline and subservience to Zion.

The nuclear gates literally unlocked during the Johnson administration and during those years U.S. aid to Israel would grow exponentially. This would also be a time of increasing UN condemnation of Israeli actions, yet unquestioning U.S. support. The U.S. position on the UN Security Council assured no viable action would ever be taken against repeated Israeli aggressions and oppressions against the Palestinians and their neighbors. It is amazing that any country could so arrogantly defy so many UN Resolutions of condemnation and be supported by only one nation...the supposed vanguard of freedom and justice, America.

During the mid-60's, Johnson's speech-writer, Jack Valenti - a media savvy speaker and organizer, would go to Hollywood and become the motion picture industry's mouthpiece and MPAA chief for self-regulation efforts, thereby abandoning the Hayes Code and its regulations against offensive programming. Johnson would also spearhead Immigration reform, which would allow for the influx of literally tens of millions of third world

refugees over the next few decades. Unchecked Immigration has been one of the greatest destroyers of the otherwise nearly invincible American nation.

Since President Johnson, other Presidents have been less enthusiastic in their praise of Israel, but all have shown a disproportionate level of support. President Richard Nixon covertly challenged Jewish influence in America. In private discussion with Reverend Billy Graham, he expressed concern for Jewish control of the media. President Nixon also requested officials in his administration to investigate the high numbers of Jewish employees in certain government agencies (23). His political career ended with Watergate, a cover-up action, which pales in comparison to the disturbing Executive actions of other Presidents.

Our two major political parties may advocate different domestic and foreign policies, but both have become increasing and unquestioning supporters of Israel. As Ariel Sharon has been quoted, "Don't worry about American pressure on Israel. We, the Jewish people, control America, and the Americans know it." Politicians seem to compete in lavishing praise, especially since that praise is usually rewarded by special interest support at

election time and favorable media coverage. This coverage can make or break a political career overnight, against seemingly impossible odds. As Tom LaHaye questioned in Mind Siege, "How could a draft dodger, a womanizer, a pathological liar, and one who, as a college student, demonstrated against his own country in a foreign land, be elected president of a patriotic, moral country...? It cannot be explained without acknowledging the power of the media."

What are the odds that two families, with questionable qualifications, could occupy the office of the President of the United States for 20 consecutive years? (not to mention George H. Bush's 8 years as Vice-President). This almost increased to 28 years as Zionist supporter and media darling Hillary Clinton prepared for 2008. Her unpopularity with a large segment of the population and the strange emergence of Barack Obama gave the puppetmasters an alternative, which they could sell through the media to the gullible American public. Especially, since John McCain represented absolutely no change to the previous eight years of Republican/Neocon war mongering. President-elect Obama will probably prove to be the Marxist that his shallow record would indicate and racial conflicts can now be easily created to accelerate America's social and economic demise. Hillary will

undoubtedly fill a key role in the ongoing Globalization effort, perhaps chairing a future World Governing Counsel. And Jeb Bush will probably be waiting in the Presidential wings for 2016. America was not conceived as a Republic for family dynasties. Under Obama, America will undoubtedly keep bases in Iraq as oil and terrorism remain the transparent issues, but the underlying issue of world domination should not be disregarded as Zionists plan the next stage of a New World Order through the domestic Socialization of America, and preparations for more war.

Already, America is quickly approaching the status of a "police state". Since the events of 9/11 and implementation of the Patriot Act, we are progressively losing our Constitutional rights. Clerics have been advised to submit their flocks to government authority in the event of any civil unrest, and repeated attempts are being made to emaciate our 1st and 2nd

Amendment rights. Possession of firearms is the Constitution right of all of our citizenry to prevent government from becoming tyrannical. It was never to restrict the type of weapons permitted for hunting, yet efforts are ongoing to severely limit our gun rights. Foreigners, who have no compassion for the rights of American citizens, are now being recruited into our armed forces and security services. It should also be of interest that America's top

"policemen" are Israeli citizens - Michael Chertoff (Director of Homeland Security), and Michael Mukasey (Attorney General). And in keeping with Washington's political fealty to Israel, President Elect Obama's Chief of Staff, Rahm Emanuel, is also an Israeli citizen. As reported in Washington Jewish Week (Dec 4, 2008), an overwhelming number of Jews are to be tapped for his administration, including his national security team. Ira Foreman, executive director of the National Jewish Democratic Council notes that "because Jews dominate every aspect of American government, it is not unusual that Jews dominate the Obama transition team and will dominate the Obama Administration." It is unfathomable to me that this is allowed...as it is the clear and real threat to our nation's security. Whether 9/11 eventually proves to be an Israeli false flag operation or not, we are not getting the truths. Our government's official story does not hold water (view the video, "Loose Change - Final Cut", as well as numerous other 9/11 books and videos). Many questions remain unanswered and government "conclusions" are vehemently disputed by reputable scientists, engineers, pilots, etc. Reasonable inquiries have been consistently subverted and diligent investigators marginalized. Increasingly though, reliable internet sources, foreign presses and foreign intelligence services are proclaiming that 9/11 was a Mosad/CIA operation designed to begin the

"War on Terror" and increase US/Israeli hegemony in the Mid-East. Since then, other polarizing international events, which should demand dubious scrutiny, have been used to foster a war-mongering dialogue. If these conspiracies prove to be true, then our government has been clearly taken over from within - and treason, of the highest degree, has been committed and is being covered-up.

Yet, in David Rockefeller Sr's 2002 book, Memoirs, he openly and unashamedly reveals "...ideological extremists...attack the Rockefeller family for the inordinate influence they claim we wield over American political and economic institutions. Some even believe we are part of a secret cabal working against the best interests of the United States, characterizing my family and me as 'internationalists' and of conspiring with others around the world to build a more integrated global political and economic structure -- one world, if you will. If that's the charge, I stand guilty, and I am proud of it."

Interestingly, Russia and China sit on the sidelines, waiting and watching, as America self-destructs trying to build an Empire, at the behest of the Zionists. America's role may be short lived however, and then the Zionists may transfer their interests to another global power, if the time of their rule

has not yet come. They did this in history with England, Russia and Germany. As a side note, during Boris Yeltsin's corrupt regime in the mid-1990's, certain forces made a play to gain financial control of Russia. With Israeli and other international Jewish support, select thugs (who grew into Russian Oligarchs) pilfered a desperate state of its resources in the name of newfound capitalism and supposed development. A brave Russian journalist, Paul Klebnikov, brought this thievery to international attention and was murdered for it. Subsequent clean up actions by Vladimir Putin have the Oligarchs on the run, but mysteries remain.

IMMIGRATION

The best way to destroy a proud and strong nation is to radically alter its demographic make-up. Unbridled immigration is the quickest way to do that. With an influx of different ethic groups, religions, languages and customs, the traditional unifying elements are undermined. America has always welcomed strangers to her bosom. Those seeking a new life, free from oppression, were her lifeblood. Heavy immigration in the late 1800's and early 1900's caused problems, but the immigrants were people who wanted desperately to assimilate into America, to learn the native language and to contribute to her productivity. With their contributions, America became the greatest nation on earth...the melting pot. We were still overwhelmingly Christian and of European descent, and those minorities, who were not, were respectful of that heritage. However, the invasion of immigrants during that period caused alarm and eventually led to responsible immigration reform in the 1920's. These reforms saved this country from potential ruin and brought stability and profitability to America. However, during the progression of years thereafter, several movements would grow to undermine traditional American (and Christian) values and demographic interests through the infiltration of our schools,

media and government. The communist-centric "Frankfort School", the "Fabian" socialists, the "Boas" anthropology movement, Darwinism, and the promotion of Freudian theories would all attack the conservative American belief system and break apart the family unit. Organizations such as the NAACP would emerge - founded and managed by a Jewish leadership. This organization and countless others would begin systematic legal challenges to America's existing social norms and begin a process of cultural division.

During the height of the civil rights movement in 1965, President Lyndon Johnson ushered in Immigration reform, which would destroy the order that we had achieved from 1924 on. Subsequent immigrants wouldn't hold the same level of respect for traditional American values and their admittance would not be merit based. They did not suit America's true needs, and were predominantly non-European derived. This would forever upset the American demographic and ultimately our economic supremacy. Contrary to socialist's interpretations, national homogeneity is key to a nation's strength, stability and long term viability. In 1967, our population reached 200 million. In just 39 years after that milestone our population grew to over 300 million - a staggering increase of 100 million people, mostly due

to immigration. With existing trends and no change to our immigration laws, the population is expected to top 400 million by 2043 (24). By the year 2050 (since revised to 2042), the Census Bureau projects that European derived peoples will no longer be a majority of the population of the United States (25). This is radical change - from over 90% European-American to less than 50% in just 75 years. What will this do to the wealth of America and to the quality of life of our indigenous citizens? Productive American jobs will continue to disappear and we will take our seat in the theater of a global Third World. This is accelerated by our submission to NAFTA, GATT and other trade agreements, which clearly do not favor the interests of America or its workers.

During 2006, at an immigration overpopulation conference held in Washington, DC, the former Governor of Colorado, Dick Lamm, silenced the huge audience with his eight points to destroy America. The audience realized that a methodical pluralist plan is quietly and pervasively destroying us and will not cease until immigration reform is enacted. Author Victor Davis Hanson in his book, Mexifornia, explains how immigration is destroying California and how it will roll across the country until it destroys all vestiges of the American Dream (26). In LA County,

according to the Los Angeles Times - 40% of all workers work for cash and do not pay taxes, 95% of Warrants for Murder are for Illegal Aliens, two-thirds of all births are to Illegal Aliens on Medi-Cal, paid for by taxpayers, nearly 60% of HUD property occupants are Illegal, and of 10.2 million people only 5.1 million speak English (27).

While many of these illegal immigrants are just seeking a better way of life, the quality of life of our existing population suffers and enforcement of our laws is made more difficult. Were we to protect our borders and guide other nations by our positive example, those nations would be inspired to better deal with their internal problems and alleviate many of the conditions that create discontent and exodus. Of great concern also in this age of increasing terrorism is the threat that we are allowing potential enemies to infiltrate us and bring their foreign allegiances into our communities. Moles can easily imbed themselves into communities when populations are in constant flux. Also, unquestionably, the drug trade has taken off due to cross border operations by drug cartels and Hispanic gangs.

Unquestionably, America should immediately remove the incentives for illegal immigration. Birthright citizenship was intended for legitimate

circumstances, not for pregnant mothers to sneak across our borders and have "anchor babies" to gain benefits and citizenship for their families.

This must be ended, as must our Federal Government's demands that states and their hospitals pay for medical services to illegal immigrants and the education of their offspring. Illegal immigrant children currently can attend our schools without question, whereas American citizens must prove their eligibility and even provide proof of immunizations before they can attend any classes. Many government programs provide scholarship opportunities for illegals, and, at the same time, deny eligibility to our own citizens. We penalize our own people, while we encourage and reward illegals.

Unbelievably, illegals can also collect Social Security benefits, even when they have never contributed.

Why have certain forces been promoting immigration, both legal and illegal? Disloyal business interests may want to exploit cheap labor and avoid their fair tax burdens. Other groups seek pluralism in America for their own reasons. Kevin MacDonald writes that "there is a perception among Jews that a multicultural society will be a bulwark against anti-Semitism" (28). He details how concerted Jewish actions over the last century have influenced immigration policies. "Reflecting the long Jewish

opposition to the idea that immigration policy should be in the national interest, the economic welfare of American citizens was viewed as irrelevant; securing high levels of immigration had become an end in itself' (29). This self-serving attitude must change if the American nation is to survive.

Wilmot Robertson's "The Dispossessed Majority" accurately foretold, in the 1970's, of the traumas that were in store for traditional European-Americans if third world immigration was allowed to continue unabated. European nation-states have also experienced similar invasions and are threatened with familial, racial, religious, cultural, and even national extinction. With the overriding actions of the European Union and pluralist organizations, the white race and its historically distinct and progressive cultures are being systematically destroyed. Like a kid placing red ants in a jar with black ants, global elites are defying national architectures to unnaturally pit various ethnic, religious and cultural groups against each other. This is not by accident.

If one considers globalist plans for a New World Order, then the destruction of national sovereignty must weigh in. History has shown that no nation

can survive any prolonged period of multiculturalism and multiracialism, especially when there no longer exists a common language, nor common values. European-Americans built this great country and, due to their cultural similarities, were able to assimilate. Today's "diversity" is forming America into a "Tower of Babel" with no national unity or common respect.

Many now substantiated reports indicate that the North American Union is not a figment of conspiracy theorist imaginations, but has been the planned and agreed upon merging of the US, Mexico, and Canada by the national leaders (without the knowledge or consent of Congress or the American people). A currency replacement, the Amero, has actually been created for issuance after the planned demise of the existing national currencies. These actions are treasonous and the American people would rise up in revolt, demanding justice, if they only knew the facts. Unfortunately, the same forces, which own our corrupt politicians, own the mainstream media and deny any substantive discourse of these issues.

OUR MILITARY

Vietnam is probably the first example in our nation's history when the military did not have the patriotic support of our civilian populace. The war was unpopular because we had enacted the draft and our involvement lacked a clear just cause, and also because the military was denied the resources to quickly win it. On the news each night, we could witness the horrors of war, while the costs in human lives and to our economy mounted. Vietnam only benefited certain business interests and was a great diversion from the more important challenges facing America.

There are many parallels between Vietnam and Iraq, two unjust wars in which the U.S. should never have been involved. Neither war was in America's best interests, and the military, in both cases, was faced with a dilemma; do they loyally support a civilian leadership, which has clearly shown that it does not have the nation's or the serviceperson's best interests in mind, or do they stand up in protest? One of the worst Presidents in our nation's history was Lyndon Johnson. Not only was he ruthless and self-serving, but he was disloyal to our troops and would not listen to advice from the military leadership. It was a time when Generals did not have the

conviction to stand up for what was right. Colonel H. R. McMaster's <u>Dereliction of Duty</u> is the best study on this.

Military personnel are taught to never question orders, unless obviously illegal. In the case of political deceits, illegality is never easy to ascertain and not within the realm of a soldier's expertise or duty. During Vietnam, had the Generals, who were in the know, stood up to President Johnson's deceits and abuses, and resigned in protest, the outcome of our involvement may have been much different. By resigning or retiring from military service, a soldier is no longer obligated to silence, and when they know of serious transgressions by our leadership, they should speak up. Unfortunately, President Bush signed an executive order, no doubt unconstitutional, forbidding government employees from whistle blowing. Thankfully, several senior officers at least expressed their opposition to our campaign in Iraq and to the poor leadership of Secretary of Defense, Donald Rumsfeld, eventually resulting in his replacement. Others, while remaining on active duty, are increasingly reflecting their views through their chain of command. We have been losing many good Americans for no just cause and everyone must help put a stop to this political chicanery.

Our current senior officer corps has served our nation with the highest distinction through two Iraq wars and other campaigns. Other former officers now occupy high posts in various agencies of our government. We do have capable leadership and hopefully they will stand up for America and exert a true patriotic influence on a political landscape, which has been treasonously misshapen by Neocon influencers. Thankfully, some service academy graduates are trying to reveal the truths about the deceptions, which led us into Iraq and subverted our foreign policy to Israel's benefit and to select business interests. A few formed Service Academy Graduates Against the War (www.sagaw.org). Their goal is to help reclaim the honor of the United States of America through truth and honorable actions and to be a voice for active duty graduates who are not in position to speak out.

Of other concern is how our Academies, as premiere training grounds for our officer corps, are potential targets for subversion. Recently, two brothers of Israeli origin went to West Point with backgrounds suggesting they were American. How this happened should be addressed. After serving short tours, they formed security companies, which gained contracts with the NSA and Department of Defense. In complex manner, they and other Mosad spawned companies infiltrated our highest levels of

government and have essentially handed the keys to our most sensitive computers and communications systems to Israel (30).

At a West Point class reunion, a friend and General officer, commented that he had to return to his post early, as he had an Israeli delegation to give a VIP tour to. This concerns me in light of the fact that there is an imbalance in the exchange of information and, in fact, there should be no exchange of information with Israel. Former Mosad officer, Victor Ostrovsky, in his book By Way of Deception reveals how the Mosad has worked to undermine American security interests and often endears and imbeds itself with the American military and government agencies to gain classified information and to leverage for Israeli interests. He cites examples, which indicate that this is never reciprocated in a balanced way by their military or intelligence services. More recently it has been revealed that Israel has stolen US technological secrets and sold them to China.

Currently, our military services are comprised of a very small percent of Jewish men and women...much less than 1%, as opposed to 2-3% of the general population. This could be accounted by a cultural proclivity against military service, except interestingly more American Jews have volunteered

to serve in the Israeli Defense Forces than in our own forces. Despite this low representation at the troop level, U.S. senior command positions are heavily staffed by Jewish Americans, including: Chief of Staff of the Air Force, GEN Norton Schwartz (the first never to have served as a fighter or bomber pilot); Assistant Commandant of the Marine Corps, GEN Robert Magnus; and Chief of the National Guard Bureau, LTG H. Steven Blum (who formulates, develops, and coordinates all policies, programs, and plans for over a half million Army and Air National Guard personnel) (31). Other military officers, being selected for high-command, are showing an increasing, and discomforting, level of support for the Zionist agenda. It has recently been reported by The Washington Post that Pentagon sources indicate that over 20,000 Army personnel will be assigned to domestic duties by 2011, in the event of terrorist activities or natural calamities. This seems to potentially be in violation of the Posse Comitatus Act and strikes fears of a developing police state where our military might be used against our own civilian populace. Strange timing, since our borders have been wide open to immigrants since 9/11, while our military occupies and protects the borders of other nations.

Of additional concern for our military is the prospect that abuses have been

and are continuing to be committed at Guantanamo Bay, Abu Ghraib and elsewhere. Soldiers, under stress and without positive leadership, can resort to brutal behavior. All wars are hell and can bring out the worst in individual human nature. America has always prided itself on striving for better. It is most distressful that our Congress passed and the President signed into law "The Military Commissions Act of 2006" - for it violates the principle of "habeas corpus" and will encourage further abuses, similar to Israel's treatment of Palestinian detainees. Likewise, "The Patriot Act" provisions can victimize innocent people and deny them due process and protections normally afforded under the law. These are serious transgressions by our political leaders. We must demand better of our lawmakers and hope that our Judicial branch fulfills their responsibilities fairly and in accordance with our Constitution in challenging these unfair laws. Increasingly, however, court rulings seem to defy logic, fairness and reasonable Constitutional interpretation. This is partially due to the nature of the political appointment process and a lack of subsequent oversight. The American Free Press, a weekly publication, is one of the few national publications still espousing traditional American rights and responsibilities, and has been a beacon against these growing abuses of power - in all branches of our government.

On a final note of grave consequence for our military is the experimentation and use of inhumane weapons. In both Iraq wars there is evidence that the US used depleted uranium weapons. The direct consequence is excessive and latent cancers and bizarre birth abnormalities occurring to Iraqis and to American servicemen and their families (32). Now there is evidence that Israel has used phosphorous bombs against the Lebanese as well as tens of thousands of cluster bomblets, which remain dispersed throughout the countryside and will continue to kill innocent civilians. These weapons have been introduced despite being in violation of the protocols of the Geneva Convention or other international bodies (33). Long term effects of these weapons will be devastation to those populations and their environments. Israel is also using an experimental weapon against Palestinian civilians, which is similar to a U.S. developed weapon called the DIME (Dense Inert Metal Explosive). These weapons cause amputations and severe burns and are also believed to be carcinogenic (34). This is reprehensible and violates all sense of humanity. Unbelievably, their use continues in the current Gaza massacres and is not being condemned by America's leadership or media.

FOREIGN POLICY

As George Washington said, "A passionate attachment of one nation for another produces a variety of evils." Throughout most of our early history, America was viewed as isolationist...largely due to our geographic position, but largely due to our nature of "minding our own business." America is a country, which has prospered and led by example, most proud of its Constitutional heritage. The Republican form of government has served us well and our independent attitude has usually been tempered with generous humanitarian actions. As Thomas Jefferson said, "The care of human life and happiness, and not their destruction, is the first and only object of good government."

Over the last hundred years however, we have increasingly become more international and aggressive. Our recent incursions into the Mid-East have been regarded, by the rest of the world, as imperialistic. We now take "preemptive" actions against perceived threats. In times of old, we would wait to be hit, and then justifiably strike back with all force. This may have put us at somewhat of a disadvantage, but gave us the upper hand, ethically. Today, we take violent unilateral actions based on suppositions, which

increasingly turn out to be wrong. More and more, these are revealed to be deceits, which are leading us down a totalitarian path of virulent aggression. Our "Shock and Awe" campaign against Iraq was an illegal and unjust act based on lies. It was spear-headed by "neocon planners", one of whom, Paul Wolfowitz, instead of being vilified, was promoted to President of the World Bank.

John Quincy Adams once said, "America does not go abroad in search of monsters to destroy. She is the well wisher to the freedom and independence of all. She is the champion and vindicator only of her own" (35). By nature, Americans were not military "empire builders," but in recent years, we have become the weapon's arm of an intended "Israeli Empire". Going back to 1942, Zionist's plans included eventually transferring the Arab population of Palestine to Iraq (36) and gaining regional hegemony. It seems as if our efforts in Iraq today, which will predictably end in civil war, are in partial fulfillment of this Zionist plan.

If these plans are in accord with "The Protocols of the Learned Elders of Zion," as they increasingly appear to be, they call for the ultimate subjugation of all nations to that of Israel. Despite vitriolic refutations, the

manipulations of these last one hundred years and the conduct of current events gives this bizarre scenario credibility. This control will be economic (central banking system) and largely effected by absolute control of the media and political puppets at the helm of other nations, until such time as government is entirely international in scope, with an international governing body and police force. At that time, the dual forces of socialism and fascism will have merged to create the global slave state of the future and we will experience an existence not too unlike that of George Orwell's 1984. This intended fate is being advanced through the work of wellfunded "think tanks" and powerful elitist organizations, such as the Bilderberg Group, the Trilateral Commission, and the Council on Foreign Relations - which operate outside the realm of general public awareness or scrutiny. David Rockefeller, and his cabal of Zionist/New World Order operatives are the key forces behind these organizations and have declared their allegiance to globalism and disloyalty to American sovereignty and nationalism.

In 2006, two academics, John J. Mearsheimer, and Stephen M. Walt, published a paper entitled "The Israel Lobby and U.S. Foreign Policy." First published in a British journal, it would gain momentum through the

internet and begin to receive some "under the radar" attention in the U.S. The paper is a study of the excessive influence that the Israeli Lobby, and in particular The American-Israel Public Affairs Committee (AIPAC), has on American foreign policy decisions. They postulate that the Lobby has an unacceptable degree of control over our foreign policy decisions, which is not in the best interests of America. In 1985, this was the principle theme of former Illinois Congressman Paul Findley's They Dare to Speak Out. This should not be news to anyone who has studied the international scene over the last forty years, but it seems to create a great deal of consternation in any public forum, quite possibly because of the troubling degree of influence that the lobby's chief agents in our government and private sector have come to exercise. Any resistance to their Israel first agenda will create a special interest backlash, which for any politician, will lead to a highlyfunded ouster.

These Neocon agents for Israel-first have enmeshed us in the Mid-East to the benefit of Israel and certain business interests, but certainly not to the benefit of the American people or the indigenous populations. As a nation, our primary response since 9/11 has been to wage war against "Arab radicals," despite the fact that any linkage to Iraq was contrived. The

Muslim people are generally compassionate and fair-minded, however extreme elements will appear and with violent retort when unjust persecutions are allowed to go unfettered. The CIA analyst, Michael Scheuer, who wrote Imperial Hubris anonymously, makes the great case that all our difficulties with the Arab world relate to our unquestioned support for Israel and that the root evil is Israel's continued occupation of Palestinian lands and subjugation of the indigenous peoples. Until this injustice is addressed by America, which otherwise continues to blindly bankroll the Israeli war machine, we will continue to be at odds with the Islamic world and extremists like Osama Bin Laden. Conspiracy theorists will be able, with justification, to declare that this pitting of groups, one against another, is by design and serves the grand Zionist scheme of world domination.

PALESTINE'S FUTURE

When one looks beyond mainstream U.S. media coverage and begins to discover the realities in Palestine, it is a shocking revelation. We, who have always prided ourselves on standing up for the little guy, are responsible for supporting the bully on the block, Israel. Most Jewish people are compassionate and would be very disturbed to know what is really going on in Palestine. They have undoubtedly been asked to contribute financially to Israel, and to support the political activities of various lobbyist organizations. If they only knew the truth - of how they and the American public have been deceived, they would demand an immediate change to our foreign policy.

A brave journalist, Alison Weir, created a web-site,

www.ifamericansknew.com, which contains startling facts about the

situation in Israel/Palestine and the one-sided media portrayals, which have

exacerbated it. The best and probably only periodical publication which

gives comprehensive and fair reporting to the situation in Israel/Palestine is

The Washington Report on Mid East Affairs.

The atrocities committed daily by the Israelis against the Palestinians are staggering. Palestinians are corralled like animals and prevented from free movement, even to their own lands and places of work. Separation barriers, gates and fences restrict them from access to necessary services. Wellfunded settlers move into Palestinian areas to claim their lands and possessions. The Palestinians are literally being starved into submission in an effort to ultimately drive them away. They cannot govern their own affairs, unless approved by Israel. The U.S. taxpayer pays for these oppressions and for the military weaponry that subjugates the Palestinian people. When desperate Palestinian youths fight back, they are shot and labeled as terrorists. Their irrational suicide bombings are virtually all that we hear about in the U.S. mainstream media. Ms. Weir has startling facts on how unfair and disproportionate the reporting actually is...with only a small percent of Israeli abuses reported, against a very high percent of Palestinians acts of terrorism. Part of this is a result of the Associated Press and other international or state news agencies having their offices located in Israel, or screened by a pro-Israeli editor prior to general distribution. It is amazing that anyone even knows about Rachel Corrie, the beautiful American girl who was killed by an Israeli bull-dozer as she tried to defend the home of a Palestinian. Where is the appropriate and fair media coverage and why is there no outcry from our political leadership?

While we were engaged in the trumped up war against Iraq and now during its deadly occupation, Israel continues to kill Palestinian resisters and innocent bystanders and incarcerate thousands of Palestinians without any charges or due process. They attack Lebanon at will and threaten to attack Iran, if it continues to develop nuclear capabilities. The U.S. and Israel feel that they can deny nuclear capabilities to others, even for peaceful purposes. Meanwhile, Israel defies all international calls for inspection of its nuclear weapons program and refuses to join the nuclear non-proliferation treaty. Humanitarian rights organizations are continually condemning Israel, while the American public is blinded by media smokescreens and unknowingly continues to support Israel's racist and inhumane actions.

CONTROLLING THE MEDIA

Walt Disney personified the best of America with his films, his television shows, his theme parks, and all that he stood for. He was my idol and had he still been alive, I would have sought him out as my mentor. Upon entering the film industry in 1983, I quickly gained an appreciation for the difficulties of succeeding in it. It has always been difficult, but increasingly so, especially for those respecting traditional values. The hurdles are similar to other industries, only greater, due to the intense competition and the fact that it attracts a lot of unscrupulous people.

I entered the "Peter Stark Motion Picture Producing Program" at the University of Southern California. It is a two-year graduate program designed to develop motion picture producers and studio executives. Coming from a military and engineering background, I was fortunate to be accepted. The founder and director of the program, Art Murphy, was an acerbic and contradictory man who had been a former Naval Commander. He had a good heart and under his curmudgeonly surface wanted to improve the professionalism of the motion picture industry. A noted film critic and industry analyst, Art accepted me into his program, whereas other industry

pundits would revile someone with my background and seek only those with film backgrounds or industry connections.

At any rate, I applied myself and graduated with 19 others. During the first year, we were a close class, but competitive natures set in during the second year and classmates drifted apart. Today, there are only a handful remaining in the business. The successful have been extremely successful while the others have migrated on to more traditional livelihoods to support themselves or their families. At the start of the program, Art said that it was a Jewish business, but anyone had the potential to succeed. I think that were he alive today, he might further condition that statement. From our class the most successful are exclusively Jewish. This seems to be the case with most classes. There may be justifications for this, but it is taboo to discuss publicly, or you will immediately be branded as "anti-Semitic".

To my knowledge, there has not been a published study on this, although Kevin MacDonald's book, <u>Culture of Critique</u> reflects estimates of Jews controlling over 40% of the general fields of mass media, high finance, legal, intellectual elite, and entertainment (37). I personally believe those estimates to be low, especially when considering the consolidated degree of

influence they have on specific and critical areas. When a unique group of people comprise less than 2-1/2 percent of the population, yet control powerful industries, questions should be asked. Were it any other group with this kind of disproportionate representation, the Jewish community would demand it.

Upon graduation I would have liked to join Disney, but the company was not the same since Walt died and I had no advocates. My experiences interning at Paramount revealed how paranoid the staffers were. Nepotism reigned and the lot was full of arrogant "stars", "deal makers" and their lackeys. It seemed to me that a lot of self-absorbed and irresponsible people were defining our "pop culture" and this did not bode well for the future of entertainment or the morality of our youth. I tried to pitch a few story ideas to obtain "development deals" (project funding), but there was no interest. Deals were being made based on relationships rather than merit.

I wanted to influence society in a positive way and become like my idol, Walt Disney. Other filmmakers who I idolized were John Ford, Frank Capra, George Stevens, and David Lean. Unfortunately, there are few filmmakers today who consistently make quality. Walt was always

independent minded. He created wonderful characters and stories, but was cheated by distributors early in his career. It wasn't until he developed his own distribution capabilities that he became a major success. Without a Walt Disney to mentor me in the flesh, I decided my best course of action would be to pursue independent production work on low-budget films and gain "trench warfare" experience.

This is a great way to learn, but a painful way to live. There is no money in it and you are forced to wear numerous hats. Most of the other people at this level of production are also hungry and few have any idea how to produce quality. Independent producers are always looking for money to fund their films. They don't usually get it from the major studios, so they look elsewhere. Some will go into personal debt and some will scour for support from friends, family and others. The majority will never get a film off the ground but those who do are convinced they are making the next mega-hit and will soon be welcomed onto the studio lot. They don't realize that the studios view them as hopeless wannabes who are not entitled. The tenacious hopefuls, who find a way to make a film, are forced to make incredible production compromises because they are working with "chump change", rather than millions of dollars of industry funds. However,

compared to the garbage coming out of Hollywood, many independent features are more meriting of national release.

During the next several years, I worked as line producer or assistant director on mostly poor quality films, which appealed to the exploitation markets. They were horror films or seedy action films that were deserving of an "R" rating and limited audiences. Independent filmmakers pursue these kinds of motion pictures as the studios usually cede those markets to them. Many people think that future filmmaking stars are independents, who make great films, which are recognized at film festivals. In my opinion, that is not the case. The few independents, who do succeed, generally make the most shocking films, which condemn traditional values. They are the ones embraced by Hollywood, while those that aspire to quality usually linger on the vine.

Regarding festival finds...a studio might not justify spending \$50 Million for an Exec's nephew to make a bizarre film for the studio (although they increasingly do). But if the nephew gets his film made independently, it will often be accepted by a major film festival (where quality independent films are routinely rejected) and surprisingly win a major award. Whether it

has anything to do with studio sponsorship of the festival or relationships is only speculation. But with a festival winning film, the Exec can now justify his studio picking up his nephew's bizarre creation and sharing it with the "deserving public". The hype that attends these kind of films can often make successes of them...although the more discerning public is shaking their heads wondering how could anyone see it as a good film. No matter, a few critics will and now the filmmaker is off to a stellar career with the studios...and through media induced peer pressure, an increasingly fickle audience will accept it as "good filmmaking".

Now for those filmmakers who make quality, and I've seen many of them at less industry supported festivals, they are left with a film that will not gain a distributor. The exception is low-level distributors (I call "bottom feeders"), who serve the small exploitation markets and live off of desperate filmmakers. Quality films cannot make money serving the exploitation markets and any money that might be made will be taken off the top for distribution fees and expenses. Also a small distributor may have his own film that is a dog, but somehow it sells for more money than the quality film (I call this "relationship packaging"). And we won't talk about creative accounting.

With all of this you might wonder why any noble-minded independent would even try against such odds. The reason is they want to fulfill their American dream, which is increasingly being limited to the Hollywood elite and their sycophants. My Jewish contemporaries from USC are producing major films every year. A few are good, most are not. Many are outwardly disrespectful of Christian, Muslim and traditional American values. I will not list their names and films here, but their impact has been significant. Given a level playing field, I know of other filmmakers, who would have faired better with the same opportunities and their content would have been much more respectful and with a positive impact on our youth.

My studio contemporaries will undoubtedly and vehemently deny that any "agenda" exists and, in truth, probably only a few of the highest initiates are even aware. Others just pursue their trade in ways which promote Hollywood's "world values", thus allowing for their individual successes and society's demise. Therein lies the Hollywood game.

Consider a viable project like the USS Liberty story. Had any nation other than Israel been the culprit, it would have been made into a major motion

picture, probably several times. The story has incredible drama with international implications. It is full of mystery, action, betrayals, and most importantly individual stories of incredible heroism and sacrifice. The Liberty crew has one of the most compelling voices in history and it is unconscionable that it has not been heard in America.

Since the early days of filmmaking, the major studios have tried to restrict competition. They went to Hollywood to escape paying Edison for his patents and have played by their own rules every since. There have been times of governmental regulation. The Haye's commission regulated content until the mid-1960's, when the Motion Picture Association of America (MPAA) was formed to self-regulate content through its' ratings administration. The MPAA is made up of the major studios as member companies and has become an important lobbyist/representative in Washington, DC for the interests of Hollywood's major players. In my opinion, its' formation has helped lead to the disintegration of societal standards of decency.

The motion picture industry has often been accused of anti-trust violations.

This usually concerns "vertical integration," whereby the handful of major

studios produce and distribute films and own theaters, thereby restricting competition. Since the Paramount consent decrees of 1947 and their subsequent divestiture of theater ownership, the government rules of ownership have eased considerably. The studios may no longer be in strict violation of the Sherman Anti-trust laws, but they have certainly found coercive ways to restrict competition. Today, the industry majors are actively consolidating and consuming smaller companies, which might pose a challenge to their markets. It has become prohibitively costly to enter the business at a level of true competition in the global marketplace. The American majors have gone international and formed partnerships and ownership interests in most foreign markets. What this is doing is creating a standard fare (substandard in quality) by reducing alternative voices and products. This leads to tremendous advantages for those seeking to manipulate world opinion.

In 1996, President Clinton signed the Telecommunications Act, which has put an incredible number of independents out of business by allowing the major companies to expand their ownership holdings. This is why traditional local programming is disappearing in favor of nationally syndicated programming. As an example of how this restricts competition

and silences alternative voices, Clear Channel Communications, as the largest radio group owner, went from 62 stations in 1996 to 1,233 in 2003 (38). Similar consolidations have taken place with television station ownership and with newspaper and magazine publications. Why should this be upsetting? Not only does it reduce opportunities for media professionals, but it reduces voices of dissent in the media and eliminates a competitive climate which might give the public better entertainment and more truthful news. Mark Cooper, director of research at the Consumer Federation of America, says, "The cornerstone of the FCC's argument to relax ownership limits is that consolidation is in the public interest. The evidence to the contrary is very clear. Stations that consolidate don't produce more news, they produce less. And diversity of news and opinion from the most influencial media declines. The record is clear: More consolidation hurts our democracy..." (39). Most outlets now sound alike and share the same messages. Those shows, which purport to offer dissenting viewpoints, are often staged, or unfairly slanted so the audience will accept predetermined conclusions. This is a powerful tool for propagandists fulfilling their own agendas. It is amazing how many Americans have been "dumbed-down" through this manipulative and evolutionary process of mind control. The motion pictures "They Live" and "V for Vendetta" interestingly pay homage to this and have found a cult following by those who are starting to question the obviousness and intent of this mass propagandizing.

Does Hollywood have an agenda? Industry defenders would scream "no". However, among many independents, it's assumed that if you want to make a film and be assured of marketing, you must make one, which attacks Christianity or challenges traditional standards of decency, or which edifies the Holocaust, uniquely creating sympathy for Jewish interests. Michael Medved, in his book "Hollywood vs. America", dealt with Hollywood's war against traditional values and cited examples of how much more profitable "G", "PG", and "PG-13" films were than "R" rated films - yet more "R" rated films are released each year than all others combined (40). If responsibility or pride of quality didn't matter to the studios, you'd think that profitability would. However, when one can control the content released to the public and overwhelm them repeatedly with an altered set of values (employing peer pressure tactics), then perhaps there are other goals.

There is an overwhelming and unrelenting tide that shapes the development, production, and marketing of content. This tide holds Jewish-Zionist interests foremost and it is according to these unspoken and unwritten

interests that content is guided and success enabled or disabled. If one just reviews film or television credits or the identity of experts from virtually any field promoted by media, then the Jewish question must come into play and we should consider how representative that is, relative to the American landscape. I do not attribute it to just talent or other qualities, but to a network which unfairly discriminates against traditional values and those who would promote them. Any discussion of Jewish nepotism, cronyism, or racism is immediately dismissed in Hollywood, especially since there are select representatives of different races and cultural persuasions, who are allowed success. But the industry agenda is unmistakable in my opinion, and slowly but horrifically patterning itself in accordance to "The Protocols".

Unlike Hollywood defenders, I believe that films do have an impact on viewer attitudes and behavior. Research clearly shows that media violence increases children's violent behavior and that sexual content in media dramatically increases sexual activity (41).

During the furor over the release of "The Last Temptation of Christ," one studio executive arrogantly proclaimed that he didn't care if the public

didn't like what they released, they would learn to like it. At least in the golden era of Hollywood, the moguls seemingly tried to entertain the public in responsible ways, which didn't offend. Respect was still a factor in our social climate. Today, reducing the public to an ignorant, immoral mass is being largely achieved through the influences of our "pop culture." Prime time television and music lyrics have become shockingly disgraceful. You can't even peruse the TV Guide "menu" channel, without being shocked by the content of the promotional fare. We are expected to believe that this "entertainment" is a reflection of our society and not the "Pied Piper" that it really is.

In contrast to Hollywood's attitude to "The Last Temptation..." and thousands of other genuinely offensive films, Mel Gibson's "The Passion" was rejected by all of the industry distributors. Unlike most independent filmmakers (but fortunate for Mel), he had the personal resources (over \$30 Million) and a superstar's networking capability to market the film without Hollywood's blessing. Normally, controversy would attract Hollywood interest, but not a Christian film. In the eyes of their community, it was viewed as "anti-Semitic" and not deserving of release. "Entertainment Weekly", reflecting the interests of its controllers, rated "The Passion" as

the most controversial film of all time (42). However, to the overwhelming Christian community, the film was not an assault on the Jewish community, but a recording of biblical events.

Hollywood contempt for other's beliefs even extends to the troubled Tom Cruise. His behavior is certainly no more startling than many of Hollywood's other stars, yet he was soundly discredited and thrashed in Hollywood for his denunciations of psychiatry and medication dependencies. Viacom (Paramount) chief, Sumner Redstone, considered Tom's behavior unacceptable (43). In typical Hollywood fashion, a few weeks after condemning Tom, Redstone hypocritically lambasted the Federal Communications Commissions for creating a "great deal of fear" among artists (44). He was responding to fines the FCC imposed on his CBS during their crackdown on indecency. Long-term, Mr. Redstone and the other industry moguls will not have to fear fines and can pursue their agendas unfettered. Federal court and Commission rulings now define material indecent if it "...depicts or describes sexual or excretory activities or organs in a patently offensive manner as measured by contemporary community standards..." (45). If community standards disintegrate as much in the next 40 years as they have in the last 40 years, anything will be

acceptable.

Regarding Hollywood's "poster children for dysfunction", it is an unfortunate situation that so many talented young people are denied opportunities, unless they are willing to compromise their core values. I know several, who have forsaken careers rather than perform in ways which are demeaning or disrespectful to their beliefs. Contrarily, talent that will stretch the envelope of decency and perform in the most shocking and vulgar ways are rewarded by Hollywood. Potential stars must be increasingly prepared to fully prostitute themselves to achieve superstardom. Many pop culture icons and today's role models are in need of help, not the attendant publicity and career promotion, which Hollywood bestows upon them.

Throughout the "golden era" of Hollywood, Walt Disney Studios was the only major motion picture company, that was not Jewish owned or controlled. Walt believed that he was consistently discriminated against. Hours after the bombing of Pearl Harbor, his studio was occupied by the US Army. No other studio was singled out this way. During the war years, Walt, as a true patriot, made numerous films for the government's

propaganda campaign - at great financial loss to the studio. Yet Secretary of the Treasury, Henry Morgenthau, was never satisfied. During these years, the other studios profited greatly by making substandard films that the public desperately needed for diversion. Disney was forced to go several million dollars in the red and by war's end was on the verge of bankrupcy. Then another studio chief offered to fund the millions Walt needed for his next two animated features, but only if Walt agreed to sell out his operation. Walt, furious, resisted and survived. His post WWII features were enormously successful, aided by the eventual freeing up of European currencies (46).

After the war years, Walt felt persecuted by communist and union activists and became suspect of his competitors. According to Leonard Mosley, "He didn't trust Jews, no matter what their proclaimed political affiliations" (47). Walt would be disappointed, but not surprised, to learn that his company is no longer controlled by his family, but by members of Hollywood's elite.

During the next several years, I sought alternatives to Hollywood. We relocated to the Mid-west and succeeded in raising independent funds to produce "A Place to Grow". It was a small story that I had written and

would direct about a country singer, who returns to the farm. We thereafter moved to Florida, where I felt the opportunities would be greater, and formed Black Knight Productions with several West Point friends.

The Black Knight team was able to secure funds to produce a quality western, "Jericho." We produced it in 2000-2001, on schedule and on budget for approximately \$850,000. This was remarkable for a period piece with action and a quality cast. At the time, the average budget for a studio production approached \$60 Million, so we could have made <u>70</u> Jerichos for that...which should tell you something about Hollywood excess.

We submitted Jericho for major distributor consideration, but most would not even screen it. So we entered it into festivals, thinking that if it did well, distributors would gain an interest. Jericho won key awards at three festivals, yet the major distributors still arrogantly ignored us. A couple "bottom feeders" started sniffing around, but they had no money and wanted the standard "license to steal". We decided to test market the film to more mainstream markets and gage audience response. More importantly, we thought that the box office data might be of interest to larger distributors.

We found theaters to be very responsive to us. They generally dislike the bulk of Hollywood films and appreciate independent competition. Part of the reason is that distributors are always pressuring theaters for the best screens and booking dates, and may withhold a good film, if the theater doesn't accept their dogs. This gives the distributor leverage over the theaters, making it difficult for an independent to get onto the best screens and especially during the best play dates. We were able to fit into a few cracks and, if we'd had the funds for a large number of release prints and advertising costs, might have been able to roll Jericho out to hundreds of theaters across the country. But this was beyond our means.

Before theaters show a film, they want to post the rating for audience members to be guided by. So we submitted Jericho to the MPAA, which rates films at a fairly substantial cost. The mission of Black Knight Productions was to develop, produce and market quality motion pictures, which promote fresh talent and the best of American ideals. In keeping with that, we were family friendly and believed that Jericho would obtain a PG or PG-13 rating. We were shocked when they awarded us an "R" rating. The film is a mystery-western and has some gunfights, but they are not gratuitous and are motivated out of the story themes of "redemption",

"peace over violence", "return to family", and "right over wrong".

Ironically, at the same time, several major releases, which, in my opinion, were truly deserving of an "R" rating, were getting "PG" or "PG13". At any rate, the "R" was unacceptable to us and we appealed. The appeals process takes time and money, so I had to temporarily abandon our test market to appear before the appeals board.

It is almost like a court proceeding, where the panel, in our case 14 people, screen the film and then I present arguments against the "R" rating, while the MPAA presents arguments in support of their rating. Fortunately, the appeals panel was made up of everyday people and the rating was reversed by a vote of 13 to 1. The MPAA representative said that it was unprecedented and that Jericho had the distinction of having a rating reversed by the widest margin in the history of the MPAA. The whole experience led me to conclude that there might exist a dual standard – one for major studio releases and one for select independents. Had we not gotten the rating reversed, our target market would have been significantly reduced. Since then, and with similar experiences, documentary director Kirby Dick tackled the MPAA with "This Film Is Not Yet Rated", "...on what he charges is one of the most powerful, secretive organizations in the

country: the film ratings board" (48).

Our test market was fairly successful, especially since we didn't know what we were doing as marketers. In some cases, our box office numbers increased from the first week to the second, which is very unusual unless there is positive word of mouth. Still, our numbers were of no interest to distributors and we had to start swimming with the bottom feeders.

Our only viable distribution support came from Monarch Home Video (a Nashville based independent), which ultimately sold over 70,000 units. Unlike every Hollywood distributor/sales agent that I have ever dealt with, Monarch actually did what they said they would do, and even exceeded expectations. Regards our foreign sales and US cable/television licensings, it is a small network of representatives who can make viable deals. Their loyalty always lies with the buyer (that's their bread and butter) and they view the independent filmmaker as a one-time sucker in need. As a result, the deals are always one-sided (or they don't happen), and the filmmaker must trust in their reps performance and honesty...a big mistake. Unfortunately, there is no alternative, unless you have the resources to self-distribute...an increasing difficult prospect.

Jericho did eventually air on several Starz channels (most often the Western Channel) and we received positive subscriber feedback, but very little money...thanks to our Hollywood rep's deal structure. Foreign sales were also abysmal. Our Hollywood foreign sales rep didn't secure 5% of the sales revenue that he predicted. When all is said and done, we'll feel grateful to get a fraction of our money returned and ultimately sell the film for peanuts to be done with it. There'll be one less independent filmmaker and Jericho will then belong to a distributor's library, where it may suddenly gain value in the television and other after markets. Or since it has Christian themes, it may disappear into oblivion.

In recent years, reporters have been accused and fired from their jobs for falsifying reports. Usually, we find out only when a competitor gets wind of it and it can be proven. Whether television, radio or newspaper reporting, this should be a serious offense. Ratings pressures, however, and a decreasing level of professional ethics with the focus on promoting one's own career or agenda, seem to make it a growing phenomenon.

Unfortunately, more and more, the media companies accept it as part of the game. This can go so far as to totally reverse the public's perception of

what an event should be. The fact that this happens with growing regularity is quite disturbing.

In this era of digital video and audio production and editing, events can easily be created or altered. An example is when Hillary Clinton was heckled in front of sixteen million Americans as they watched the live broadcast of the Concert for New York City on VH1 (a subsidiary of MTV, owned by Redstone's Viacom, which also owns CBS). She walked on stage, apparently to get some political mileage out of honoring the heroes of 9/11. It was a great embarrassment that the police and firemen of NYC booed her on national television. On Christmas Day, when it re-aired, and when DVD's were marketed of the concert, the videos had been doctored and Hillary walked on stage to great applause and cheers...quite a public relations coup (49). When the media can have this kind of power to manipulate public opinion to promote their political favorites, then we are heading into Orwell's world. Interestingly, when Presidential candidate Hillary Clinton's prospects for election became questionable, Senator Barrack Obama, an even more extreme socialist, came out of nowhere with incredible media support to capture the fascination of America. When studying his shallow qualifications and controversial positions, it is bizarre

and predictive of a future that will likely be marred by civil unrest and an accelerated national decline. The international financiers are making great strides in their bold, but systematic moves toward globalism. As David Rockefeller said in Baden-Baden, Germany in 1991, "We are grateful to the Washington Post, The New York Times, Time Magazine and other great publications whose directors have attended our meetings and respected their promises of discretion for almost forty years. It would have been impossible for us to develop our plan for the world if we had been subjected to the lights of publicity during those years. But, the world is now more sophisticated and prepared to march towards a world government. The supranational sovereignty of an intellectual elite and world bankers is surely preferable to the national auto-determination practiced in past centuries."

Despite these power figures, there is hope for the survival of a free

American republic. The internet is a phenomenal growth medium that still
allows for the free exchange of ideas and is reaching concerned Americans.

So far, no one has succeeded in regulating it, although efforts are being
made. Unlike other sources of news, items reaching the internet have not
gone through the filter of international news agencies. Today these
agencies, with offices around the world, collect, edit and disseminate news

through their valves. As Douglas Reed attested in 1956, "Any hand that can control those valves can control 'the News'...that was not the situation in 1905,... or in 1926, when I became a journalist, but it was developing and today is the situation" (50).

With today's technological capabilities and increasing terrorist security concerns, it is assured that government agencies are eavesdropping on internet communications. "...NSA has managed to find ways to tap into all of these new technologies – including fiber optic cables – and is pulling in more communications than ever" (51). A growing number of internet service providers stand at the gateway with similar capabilities, therefore the degree of individual security protection is questionable, at best. In addition, the growing "Patriot Acts" will allow expanding use of these intercepts. If we are not vigilant, the portals of the internet will allow, in the future, only "approved" news for dissemination, with the monitoring of dissidents.

CORRECTING OUR COURSE

America can be saved from its current destructive course. It is a country blessed like no other and we have always found ways to overcome.

However, it will take heroes committed to the ideals of our Founding Fathers to turn this nation around.

Some might consider and label me as "anti-Jewish" (a term more appropriate than anti-Semitic), but that is not the case. In my opinion, Jews have been unwittingly used by internationalists and elements of their own community. Their resultant individual and collaborative actions have historically led to injustices and subsequent resentments. These resentments are usually branded as anti-Semitism, rather than as justifiable concerns. According to Albert Einstein, "anti-Semitism is nothing but the antagonistic attitude produced in the non-jew by the Jewish groups. The Jewish group has thrived on oppression and on the antagonism it has forever met in the world...the root cause is their use of enemies they create to keep solidarity..." (52). To break from this mindset is key to successful Jewish assimilation, to peace in the Middle East, and to the survival of modern nations. Failure to break from it, will essentially continue support for racist

Zionism and, wittingly or unwittingly, their plans of world domination.

Jews have a history of bitter dissention and vengefulness to contend with. They are an ambitious, yet insecure people and must overcome their mutually destructive feelings of persecution and superiority. Most gentiles are familiar with the overwhelming body of media on Jewish persecutions, however "if we consult Jewish literature we ascertain that it is...this idea of world hegemony which haunts the minds of the Chosen People and impregnates their thoughts and their acts" (53). An ambitious people can easily be acceptant to a mindset of racism, especially when it is a part of their heritage and indoctrination and they experience material benefit by it. Overcoming this could truly be their most noble and compassionate goal.

My personal belief is that the American Jewish community could be key to saving America and certainly the Middle East. The vast majority of Jewish people are highly intelligent and humanitarian. It is time for them to oppose the would-be "world rulers," the financial barons who have plotted throughout the ages and hijacked the Jewish community for their own purposes. These world puppeteers are using Zionism to ride the back of the Jewish community like a parasite, feeding off of it and surreptitiously

guiding it to eventual ruin. By effectively using the most racist of doctrines and instilling a sense of fear and supremacy, they have succeeded in creating a special and distinct class, but a troubled and vulnerable people. In America, better than any other previous host nation, Jews have found the ability to assimilate and prosper. By throwing off the yoke of racist Zionism they can truly live in peace and harmony with other peoples. This may mean losing potential advantages that have been created through their extensive network of support organizations, but healthy associations can continue and still honor the best of Jewish traditions. It will mean standing up for what is right by humanitarian standards, and not out of fear or pressure by special interest groups.

The future can still safeguard a Jewish state for those who choose Israeli citizenship. But Israel must be compelled to honor a true road map to peace with their neighbors. If they abandon their racist policies they can thrive of their own accord and not as a dependent. All Americans, especially those of the Jewish faith, should use their power to help leverage for this end.

Some actions that can be taken to help preserve the American Dream are:

- 1) support and vote for candidates who represent the best of American ideals and will uphold our Constitution and Bill of Rights
- 2) place term limits on those elected to political office
- 3) increase the number of Congressional representatives, so that constituencies are better served
- 4) remove the power of special interest groups and their financial leverage over political candidates
- 5) support efforts to reduce consolidated ownership of media and encourage new, small and diversified ownership
- 6) reduce the size and complexity of government and decentralize governmental activities to the most local level possible
- 7) disallow holders of dual citizenship to occupy any federal government position which might effect our nation's security interests.
- 8) reform immigration laws to reduce the invasion and qualify applicants for American citizenship (hold employers accountable and no amnesties)
- 9) make English the standard language and require non-English speakers to gain proficiency before granting citizenship
- 10) end divisive and unConstitutional "affirmative Action" programs
- 11) eliminate or reduce aid to foreign nations
- 12) work fairly with the UN in seeking a just peace in the Middle East,

- which includes a homeland and self determination for Palestinians
- 13) bring our troops home from the over 700 bases and 130 countries around the world.
- 14) end the Federal Reserve System and put the issuance and control of our currency within the Treasury Department.
- 15) eliminate our involvement in unfair trade agreements, such as NAFTA and GATT.
- 16) dissolve the IRS and return to supporting a small federal government through responsible protective tariffs and excise taxes.

SUMMARY

As I began this journey by researching the USS Liberty, never did I believe that it would take me through such troubling discoveries. I was not a "conspiracy theorist" and although I held certain resentments to the controlled Hollywood establishment, I was not and am not "anti-Jewish" or "anti-Semitic." I am however, very pro-American and resolute in combating discrimination in all forms, including Jewish favoritism and Zionist pressure tactics – which I feel are destroying America, in favor of globalism.

Our nation is the greatest ever built and has the incredible potential to truly lead the world to peace and prosperity by being a fair and just role model. However, the United States should not encourage the creation of a "newworld order." The very concept is un-American and implies universal control. We must respect the sovereignty of other nations, and resist all efforts that would destroy our traditions, values and freedoms.

I believe that conspiracies have brought us to this very dangerous and vulnerable time. With the troubled background of the Jewish race, it has been relatively easy for an influencial few to covertly direct the actions of

their groups by embracing a racist creed, playing on fears of persecution, and branding valid criticism as "anti-Semitic." With sophisticated organizational skills, they have been able to present a collective power and profit materially. As individuals aiding each other, they have been very effective in gaining positions of influence in all walks of life...especially in business, law, medicine, finance, entertainment, and politics. They have gained ownership or management control of the mass media and through this have gained a great degree of influence over the political landscape and the attitudes and beliefs of the public at large. By embracing Zionism, they were able to create a racist state that was postured sympathetically to the American public, but which in reality has been an oppressive state run by regimes of former terrorists. The state of Israel seeks to build an empire in the Middle East, which will not only dominate their neighbors and the oil rich region, but the entire world by way of puppet regimes and mass media influence over the public. That plan is very much in accord with "The Protocols of the Elder's of Zion" and must be prevented.

Many people are starting to recognize and associate our international problems today with America's strange relationship and overwhelming support for Israel. Likewise many people are beginning to question the

Jewish connection to other changes in our country. The overwhelming majority of Jewish people are good, but unfortunately have been used to promote an agenda for world domination. As general public awareness increases and American patriotic resistance develops against the New World Order, there will likely be a backlash against the Jewish people. My appeal is to the Jewish community to address these issues by placing America first, rather than Israel and Jewish identity, and take the lead in correcting the current injustices and imbalances by restoring our Constitutional republic. The power of the Jewish community could be successful in short order and gain the respect and admiration of, not only other Americans, but nations everywhere. They could help restore American credibility and achieve a lasting peace in the Middle East with positive ramifications throughout the world. The Jewish people must somehow overcome the internationalist designs of their leaders, and give their first loyalty to America and its traditional libertarian doctrines. Will this happen? With current conditions and trends, it is doubtful - but I pray that it does, so the American dream can live on.

NOTES

Operation Cyanide, Peter Hounam, Vision Books, London, 2003, pg 125.

"Declaration of Ward Boston, Jr., Captain, JAGC, USN (Ret.)", Coronado, California, Jan 9, 2004

The American Heritage Dictionary, Houghton, Mifflin Company

Spiritual Sayings of Kahlil Gibran, Bantam Books, April 1970, pg 113

<u>Jewish History – Jewish Religion</u>, Israel Shahak, 1993, pg 13.

Bud Fleisher, Democrats.Org

The Thirteenth Tribe, Arthur Koestler, Random House, New York, 1976, pg 180.

The Culture of Critique, Kevin McDonald, 1st Books Library, 2002, pg 14

<u>Secret Societies & Subversive Movements</u>, Nesta H. Webster, A & B Books Publishers, reprinted 1994, pg. 381.

The Holocaust on Trial, Robert Lenski, Reporter Press, 1990

The Zionist Connection II, Alfred M. Lilienthal, pgs 743-747.

The Controversy of Zion, Douglas Reed, Veritas Publishing, pg 232.

Benjamin H. Freeman's speech given in 1961 at the Willard Hotel in Washington, D.C. on behalf of Conde McGinley's newspaper, "Common Sense."

<u>The International Jew</u>, Henry Ford Sr., reprinted 1995 by CPA Publisher. Reed, pgs 295-299.

David Ben-Gurion, quoted from translation of Shabtai Teveth's <u>Ben Gurion</u>, pgs 855-856.

www.ifamericansknew.com

Lilienthal, pg 106.

Taking Sides, Stephen Green, William Morrow & Company, 1984.

The Secret War Against the Jews, John Loftis and Mark Aarons, St Martins Press, 1994, pg 260.

Green, pg 183-186.

Hounam, pg 229.

Loftis and Aarons, Pg 309.

"US Population Passes 300 Million Mark", Stephen Ohlemacher, Associated Press, October, 17, 2006.

MacDonald, pg 296.

Mexifornia, Victor Davis Hanson

Los Angeles Times, Monday, September 18, 2006.

MacDonald, pg 303.

Ibid, pg 296.

"Israelis Hold Keys to NSA and US Government Computers", Christopher Bollyn, <u>American Free Press</u>, Sep 4, 2006.

"A Perfect Storm? Obama and the Zionist Power Configuration", Edmund Connelly, <u>Occidental Observer</u>, Nov 16, 2008.

A William Lewis video, "Beyond Treason", Power Hour Productions, 2005.

Robert Fisk, "The Mystery of Israel's Secret Uranium Bomb", <u>The Washington Report on Middle East Affairs</u>, December 2006

Meron Rapoport, "Italian Probe: Israel Used New Weapon Prototype in Gaza Strip", <u>Haaretz</u>, October 11, 2006

Imperial Hubris, Anonymous, Brassey's, 2004, pg, 200.

Lilienthal, pg 32.

MacDonald, pg 305.

The Hollywood Reporter, Sept 19-25, 2006, pg 94.

Ibid, "Old Media Making Pitch - Firms urge FCC to ease ownership rules in '07", Oct 24-30, 2006, pg 54.

Hollywood vs America, Michael Medved

"Racy Media Increases Teen Sex, Study Says", Michael Conlon, Reuters, April 3, 2006

Entertainment Weekly, June 16, 2006, pg 35.

AOL Entertainment News, "Paramount Cuts Ties With Tom Cruise", August 22, 2006 (Reuters).

The Hollywood Reporter, Weekly edition October 17-23, pg 1.

Ibid, pg 95.

Disney's World, Leonard Mosley, pgs 204-207.

Ibid, pg 221.

Gregg Goldstein and Anne Thompson, "Filmmaker Lifts Lid on Secretive Ratings System", Reuters, Jan 23rd, 2006.

Hilary's Secret War, Richard Poe, WND Books, 2004, pg 5-7.

Reed, pg 215.

Body of Secrets, James Bamford, Anchor Books, April 2002, pg 464.

Albert Einstein, Collier's Magazine, November 26, 1938

<u>Freemasonry and Judaism</u>, Vicomte Leon De Poncins, A & B Publishers, pg 221.

Born and raised in Des Moines, Iowa, Merlin Miller graduated from the United States Military Academy at West Point, New York. He served several years in the U.S. Army where he commanded two units and then worked as an Industrial Engineering Manager for Michelin Tire Company. In 1983, he was accepted into the University of Southern California's "Peter Stark Motion Picture Producing Program," graduating in 1985 with an MFA degree in Cinema/Television. He has since been an independent screenwriter, motion picture producer/director, and media instructor. His films include; "A Place to Grow" starring Gary Morris and Wilford Brimley, and "Jericho" starring Mark Valley, Leon Coffee and R. Lee Ermey.

Merlin is now in process of building Americana Pictures (<u>www.Americana-Pictures.com</u>), a motion picture production and distribution company as a quality alternative to Hollywood.